

**Economic and Social Council**Distr.: General  
21 October 2016

English only

---

**Economic Commission for Europe****Inland Transport Committee****World Forum for Harmonization of Vehicle Regulations****Working Party on Passive Safety****Sixtieth session**

Geneva, 13–16 December 2016

Item 19 of the provisional agenda

**Regulation No. 129 (Enhanced Child Restraints Systems)****Proposal for Supplement 2 to the 02 series of amendments to Regulation No. 129****Submitted by the expert from France\***

The text reproduced below was prepared by the expert from France, on behalf of the informal group on Child Restraints Systems and updates the latest version of Regulation No 129. The modifications to the current text of the UN Regulation and of ECE/TRANS/WP.29/2016/107 (02 series of amendments to the UN Regulation) and ECE/TRANS/WP29/GRSP/2016/19 (Proposal for Supplement 1 to the 02 series of amendments to Regulation No. 129) are marked in bold for new or strikethrough for deleted characters.

---

\* In accordance with the programme of work of the Inland Transport Committee for 2016–2017 (ECE/TRANS/254, para. 159 and ECE/TRANS/2016/28/Add.1, cluster 3.1), the World Forum will develop, harmonize and update Regulations in order to enhance the performance of vehicles. The present document is submitted in conformity with that mandate.

GE.16-18315(E)



\* 1 6 1 8 3 1 5 \*

Please recycle The text "Please recycle" followed by a standard recycling symbol (a triangle of arrows).



## I. Proposal

*Text of the Regulation,*

*Paragraph 2.3.2., amend to read*

"2.3.2. "i-Size booster seat" (Non-Integral Universal Enhanced Child Restraint System) is a category of Enhanced Child Restraint Systems with integrated backrest and stowable ISOFIX ~~connectors~~ **attachments** if any, primarily designed for use in all i-Size seating positions of a vehicle."

*Paragraph 2.6., amend to read:*

"2.6. "**Integral Universal ISOFIX Universal**" is an ISOFIX **Enhanced Child Restraint System** comprising either a top-tether or a support-leg, to limit the pitch rotation of the Enhanced Child Restraint System, attached to, or supported by, the corresponding vehicle."

*Paragraph 2.16., amend to read:*

"2.16. "CRF pitch angle" is the angle between the bottom surface of the fixture "ISO/F2 ~~(B)~~" as defined in Regulation No. 16 (Annex 17, Appendix 2, Figure 2) and the horizontal Z plane of the vehicle as defined in Regulation No. 14 (Annex 4, Appendix 2), with the fixture installed in the vehicle as defined in Regulation No. 16 (Annex 17, Appendix 2)."

*Paragraph 2.17.1., amend to read:*

"2.17.1. "ISOFIX Vehicle seat fixture" means a fixture, according to ISOFIX size ~~classes~~ **envelopes** whose dimensions are given in Figures 1 to 7 of Appendix 2 to Annex 17 to Regulation No. 16, used by an Enhanced Child Restraint System manufacturer to determine the appropriate dimensions of an ISOFIX Enhanced Child Restraint System and the location of its ISOFIX attachments."

*Paragraph 2.57., amend to read:*

"2.57. "Module", is a part of an ECRS that is separate from the ISOFIX **attachments** ~~connectors~~ and is in direct contact with the child. A module can be used whether or not as a stand-alone to restrain a child in a car. A base is allowed to accept more than one module (Module A, Module B, etc.)."

*Paragraph 4.6., amend to read:*

"4.6. Marking for integral ECRS including ISOFIX connections attachments.

The marking shall be located on the part of the ECRS which includes the ISOFIX ~~connectors~~ **attachments**.

One of the following information labels shall be permanently visible to someone installing the Enhanced Child Restraint System in a vehicle:"

*Paragraph 4.6.2., amend to read:*

"4.6.2. *Specific Vehicle ISOFIX ECRS.*

If the product includes ISOFIX attachments, the following information shall be permanently visible to someone installing the restraint in a vehicle:

The ISO ISOFIX logo followed by the ~~letter(s)~~ **reference(s)** that is/are appropriate for the ISOFIX size ~~class(es)~~ **fixture(s)** into which the product

fits. As a minimum, a symbol consisting of a circle with a diameter of minimum 13 mm and containing a pictogram, the pictogram shall contrast with the background of the circle. The pictogram shall be clearly visible either by means of contrast colors or by adequate relief if it is moulded or embossed.



Ⓑ ISO/F2, Ⓒ ISO/R3 and Ⓕ ISO/L1

The Specific vehicle ISOFIX Enhanced Child Restraint System shall have a permanently attached label visible to the person installing the Enhanced Child Restraint System in the car, containing the following information:

Specific Vehicle ISOFIX 

*Paragraph 4.6.3.*, amend to read:

"4.6.3. An international approval mark as defined in paragraph 5.4.1. In case the ECRS containing module(s) this marking shall be permanently attached to the part of the ECRS which includes the ISOFIX ~~connectors~~ **attachments**."

*Insert a new paragraph 4.7.3.*, to read:

"**4.7.3. An impact shield that is not permanently attached to the child seat shall have a permanently attached label to indicate the make and model of the ECRS to which it belongs. The minimum size of the label shall be 40 x 40 mm**"

*Paragraph 5.4.3.1.*, amend to read:

"5.4.3.1. The words "R129" followed by a dash and the same approval number as the part of the ECRS which includes the ISOFIX ~~connectors~~ **attachments**;"

*Paragraph 6.3.2.1.*, amend to read:

"6.3.2.1. Internal geometric characteristics

The Technical Service conducting the approval tests shall verify that the internal dimensions of the Enhanced Child Restraint System conform to the requirements of Annex 18. The minimum dimensions for shoulder breadth, hip breadth and sitting height shall be fulfilled simultaneously for any stature within the size range declared by the manufacturer. Integral Enhanced Child Restraint System shall also fulfil the minimum and maximum dimensions of shoulder height, for any stature within the size range declared by the manufacturer.

**Non-integral Enhanced Child Restraint System shall also fulfil the maximum dimensions of shoulder height, for any stature within the size range declared by the manufacturer"**

*Paragraph 6.3.2.1.*, amend to read:

"6.3.2.2.1. Integral Class Enhanced Child Restraint Systems

The maximum external dimensions for the width, height and depth of the Enhanced Child Restraint System and the locations of the ISOFIX anchorages system, with which its attachments shall engage, shall be defined

by the ISOFIX Vehicle Seat Fixture as defined in paragraph 2.17.1. of this Regulation.

(a) i-Size Forward facing Enhanced Child Restraint Systems shall fit within the ISO/F2x size envelope for a reduced-height forward-facing toddler CRS;

(b) i-Size Rearward facing Enhanced Child Restraint Systems shall fit within the ISO/R2 size envelope for a reduced-size rearward-facing toddler CRS;

(c) Specific vehicle ISOFIX Enhanced Child Restraint Systems shall fit:

(i) in vehicle(s) specified in a list or

(ii) at least in one of the ISO (R1, **R2X**, R2, R3, **F2X**, F2, ~~F2X~~, F3, L1, L2) size envelopes as described in Annex 17 Appendix 2 of Regulation No. 16.

..."

Paragraph 6.6.4.1.6.2., amend to read:

"6.6.4.1.6.2.1.1. Without the anti-rotation device ~~and without the shoulder strap positioner~~ in use, unless:

(a) a mechanism **or**;

(b) a visual and audible warning signal.

is provided to prevent incorrect use of the anti-rotation device ~~and / or the shoulder strap positioner~~.

**6.6.4.1.6.1.2. Without the shoulder strap positioner in use, unless:**

(a) a mechanism **or**;

(b) a visual and audible warning signal.

**is provided to prevent incorrect use of the shoulder strap positioner."**

Paragraph 7.2.8., amend to read:

"7.2.8. The complete seat, or the component fitted with ISOFIX attachments (e.g. ISOFIX base) if it has a release button, is attached rigidly to a test rig in such a way that ISOFIX ~~connectors~~**attachments** are vertically aligned as shown in Figure 3. A 6 mm diameter bar, 350 mm long, shall be attached to the ISOFIX ~~connectors~~**attachments**. A mass of 5 kg shall be attached to the extremities of the bar."

Paragraph 7.2.8.2., amend to read:

"7.2.8.2. The ISOFIX attachments opening force shall be applied using a dynamometer or similar device in the normal manner and direction as indicated in the manufacturers user manual. The contact end shall be a polished metal hemisphere with radius  $2.5 \pm 0.1$  mm for a release button or a polished metal hook with a radius of 25 mm."

Paragraph 7.2.8.4., amend to read:

"7.2.8.4. The ISOFIX attachments opening force to be measured shall be that needed to disengage the first ~~connector~~**attachment**."

Annex 24, amend to read:

Load application device II

"...

<i>Stretch length</i>	(+/- 5 mm)				
	Q 0	Q 1	Q 1,5	Q 3	Q 6
Main belt (A)	1,740 mm	1,850 mm	1,900 mm	2,000 mm	2,000 mm
Hip belt (B)	530 mm	560 mm	600 mm	630 mm	660 mm
Lower dimension (C)	125 mm	150 mm	150 mm	170 mm	200 mm
Mid dimension (D)	270 mm	300 mm	350 mm	380 mm	380 mm

..."

## II. Justification

The above proposal aims clarifying and at adding editorial corrections to the text of the 02 series of amendments to the UN Regulation No. 129.